HOUSE FI NANCE COW TTEE
February 25, 2014
8:01 a.m

8:01: 57 AM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Stoltze called the House Finance Conmmittee neeting
to order at 8:01 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Al an Austernan, Co-Chair
Representative Bill Stoltze, Co-Chair
Represent ati ve Mark Neuman, Vice-Chair
Representative Ma Costello
Representati ve Bryce Edgnon
Representative Les Gara

Representative David Guttenberg
Representati ve Lindsey Hol nes
Representati ve Cat hy Minoz
Representative Steve Thonpson
Representative Tanme W/ son

VEMBERS ABSENT

None

ALSO PRESENT

Senator John Coghill, Sponsor; Representative Gabrielle
Ledoux, Sponsor; Chad Hutchinson, Staff, Senator John
Coghi I I; Susan Schrader, Self, Juneau; Laura Powers, Self,

Juneau; |zebella Powers, Self, Juneau; Korbyn Powers, Self,
Juneau; George Brown, Pediatrician, Juneau; M chael Paul ey,
Al aska Fam |y Council, Juneau; Melissa Engel, Self, Juneau;
Joyanne Bloom Self, Juneau; Ann Robertson, Self, Juneau;
Al lison Currey, Self, Juneau.

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

M ke  Coons, Sel f, Pal ner ; Joshua  Decker, Executive
Director, Anerican Civil Liberties Union of Al aska; Kine
McCl i ntock, Self, Anchorage; Lynn Escola, Self, Petersburg;
Jessica Cler, Public Affairs Mnager, Planned Parenthood

House Fi nance Conmmittee 1 02/ 25/ 14 8:01 A M



Vot es Northwest, Anchorage; Theda Pittman, Self, Anchorage;
Robin Sumrers, Policy Director, National Famly Planning
and Reproduction Association, Washington D.C.; Jan Carolyn
Hardy, Self, Anchorage; Any Bollenbach, Self, Honer; Jean
Bramer, Qobstetrician, Fairbanks.

SUMVARY
HB 173 RESTRI CT MEDI CAI D PAYMENT FOR ABORTI ONS

HB 173 was HEARD and HELD in conmmttee for
further consideration.

SSSB 49(FI N)
MEDI CAl D PAYMENT FOR ABORTI ONS; TERVS

SSSB 49(FIN) was HEARD and HELD in conmttee for
further consideration.

#sb49
#hb173
SPONSOR SUBSTI TUTE FOR SENATE BI LL NO 49 am

"An Act relating to wonen's health services and
defining 'nedically necessary abortion' for purposes
of maki ng paynments under the state Medicaid program?”

HOUSE BI LL NO. 173

"An Act defining 'nedically necessary abortion' for
pur poses of naking paynents under the state Medicaid
program "

8:02:11 AM

Co-Chair Stoltze discussed the agenda for the day.

8:03:11 AM

SENATOR JOHN COGHILL, SPONSOR, introduced hinself and
di scussed his intent related to the bill presentation.
Senator Coghill stated that SB 49 would bring clarity to

Medicaid paynents for abortions. He detailed that the
Al aska Suprenme Court ruled that the state pay for nedically
necessary aborti ons, but a definition of medi cal | y
necessary had not been provided. The bill was an attenpt to

House Fi nance Conmmittee 2 02/ 25/ 14 8:01 A M



defi ne nmedi cal | y necessary, whi ch woul d categori ze
abortions outside of the definition as elective. The bil
addressed when a nedically necessary abortion was required
and |ooked to the physical health of the wonan. He
communi cated that a presentation would provide further
detail.

REPRESENTATI VE GABRI ELLE LEDQUX, SPONSOR, i ntroduced
herself. She relayed that HB 173 was the conpanion bill to
SB 49. She believed the term nedically necessary abortion
needed to be defined. She did not see the bill as pro-life
or pro-choice, but only as fiscal legislation. She stated
that the bill would bring clarity to a previously unknown
term

8:06: 25 AM

CHAD HUTCHI NSON, STAFF, SENATOR JOHN COGHI LL, stated that
SB 49 was about bringing clarity to the previously unknown
term "nedically necessary abortion." The goal was to define
the term for the purpose of nmaking paynments under Medi cai d.
He referred to a bound document titled "SB 49 Committee
Bi nder"” (copy on file). Tabs 1 and 2 included a copy of
SSSB 49 am and the sponsor statenment. He clarified that the
bill did not attenpt to argue a prior Planned Parenthood
case from 2001 (Tab 7). The sponsor acknow edged that
Al aska was required to provide nedically necessary services
including nedically necessary abortions to |owincone
i ndi viduals. The challenge was that no definition had been
established to determne what constituted nedically
necessary.

M. Hutchinson pointed to Tab 1 and read the bill title.
Section 1 of the bill had been amended on the Senate Fl oor.
Section 2 included the definition for the term medically
necessary abortion. He read from Section 2(a):

The departnent may not pay for abortion services under
this chapter unless the abortion services are for a
nmedi cal |y necessary abortion or the pregnancy was the
result of rape or incest. Paynent may not be nade for
an el ective abortion.

M. Hutchinson read from the top of page 2 pertaining to
the definition of abortion:

House Fi nance Conmmittee 3 02/ 25/ 14 8:01 A M



(2) "elective abortion" nmeans an abortion that is not
a nedically necessary abortion;

(3) "nmedically necessary abortion" mneans that, in a
physician's objective and reasonable professional
judgnent after considering nedically relevant factors,
an abortion nust be perforned to avoid a treat of
serious risk to the life or physical health of a wonman
fromcontinuation of the woman's pregnancy;

M. Hutchinson relayed that the | anguage had been taken out
of the 2001 Planned Parenthood decision and was used in
various fornms in the Hyde Amendnent.

8:10: 07 AM

M. Hutchinson continued with Section 2(4):

"serious risk to the [I|ife or physical heal t h"
includes, but is not limted to, a serious risk to the
pregnant woman of

(A) death; or

(B) impairment of a major bodily function because
of

M. Hutchinson relayed that the various nedical afflictions
listed under the section had been verified by nedical
experts including eight Al askan doctors and three nationa
doctors. He noted that the physical conditions were
included in the 2001 Pl anned Parenthood decision. He read a
catchall provision in Section 2(4)(B)(xxii):

anot her physi cal di sorder, physi cal injury, or
physi cal i1l ness, i ncl udi ng a i fe-endangering
physical condition caused by or arising from the
pregnancy that places the woman in danger of death or
major bodily inmpairment if an abortion is not
per f or med.

M. Hutchinson stated that death was the foundation the
term "major bodily inpairnment” had been included as a
mandatory extra protection as stipulated in the 2001
Pl anned Parenthood decision. He addressed Section 3 and
rel ayed that the analysis had not been as substantive as
that of the definition. He discussed the definition of
nmedi cally necessary as stated in the bill. The definition
incorporated the federal foundation required by the Hyde

House Fi nance Conmmittee 4 02/ 25/ 14 8:01 A M



Amendnent. He spoke to the inportance of the Hyde Anmendnent
and noted that it had been incorporated into Executive
Order 13535 by President Oobanma for inclusion in the federal
Affordable Care Act (Tab 3). He read from Section 1 of the
executive order:

it is necessary to establish an adequate enforcenent
mechani sm to ensure that Federal funds are not used
for abortion services (except in cases of rape or
incest, or when the Ilife of the woman would be
endangered), consistent with a [|ongstanding Federal
statutory restriction that is comonly known as the
Hyde Anmendnent.

M. Hutchinson disputed the claim that there could be no
restrictions on funding for abortions. He stated that the
executive order |limted abortion funding to cases involving
rape, incest, and the life of the wonan. He relayed that
the definition in SB 49 provided nore protection than the
federal definition. He read from Hyde Anmendnent | anguage
under Tab 4:

Section 508 (a) The limtations established in the
precedi ng section shall not apply to an abortion

(1) if the pregnancy is the result of an act of rape
or incest; or

(2) in the case where a wonan suffers from a physica
di sorder, physi cal injury, or physi cal illness,
including a |ife-endangering physical condition caused
by or arising from the pregnancy itself, that would,
as certified by a physician, place the wonman in danger
of death unless an abortion is perforned.

M. Hutchinson enphasized the word phy5|cal and rel ayed
that the focus was incorporated into the bill's definition.

8:14: 36 AM

M. Hutchinson pointed out that death was the standard used
in the Hyde Amendnent. He stated that the bill provided
addi ti onal protection as required under the Al aska
Constitution. He reiterated that definitions provided in
the bill had been taken from the Planned Parenthood
decision and had been agreed to by nedical experts. He
stated that the bill nade a clear distinction between

House Fi nance Conmmittee 5 02/ 25/ 14 8:01 A M



el ective and nedically necessary procedures. He clarified
that Medicaid did not fund el ective procedures and stressed
that it should not fund elective abortions. He added that
Medicaid was required to perform nedically necessary
procedures. He directed attention to statistics included
under Tab 6. He comunicated that at a mninum the
definition was required to include the federal exceptions
of rape, incest, and life endangernent. The statistics
showed performance in other states. Tab 7 included the 2001
Pl anned Parent hood decision court order. He read from page
10:

DHSS [Departnent of Health and Social Services] is
constitutionally bound to apply neutral criteria in
al | ocati ng heal th care benefits, even i f
consi derations of expense, nedical feasibility, or the
necessity of particular services otherwise limt the
health care it provides to poor Al askans.

M. Hutchinson noved to page 16 of tab 7 and read from the
court order concl usion:

The State, having undertaken to provide health care
for poor Al askans, nust adhere to neutral criteria in
distributing that care. It my not deny nedically
necessary services to eligible individuals based on
criteria unrelated to the purposes of the public
heal th care program

Senator Coghill noted that the goal was not to discrimnate
health care services and to define when sonething was
medi cal |y necessary versus elective. He acknow edged that
the bill would probably draw litigation given its base in
[itigation.

Representative Costello MOWED to ADOPT the proposed
committee substitute for SSSB 49(FIN), Wrk Draft 28-
LS0410\Y (M schel, 4/13/13).

Representative Gara OBJECTED. He asked for clarity on the
bill version before the conmttee. He referred to the bil
that had passed the Senate, which had included famly
pl anni ng | anguage.

Co-Chair Stoltze answered that the version was different

from the bill passed by the Senate; the bill before the
conmttee reflected the original bill |anguage.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 6 02/ 25/ 14 8:01 A M



Representative Gara spoke to his objection. The bill that
passed the Senate included a provision that allowed the
state to participate in the wonen's health Medicaid famly
pl anning program He relayed that evidence suggested that
participation in the program would reduce the nunber of
uni ntended pregnancies, the cost of care for pregnant
worren, and the nunber of abortions in Alaska. He did not
want renove a portion from the bill that would reduce the
nunber of abortions or the nunber of uni nt ended
pregnanci es.

8:20:15 AM

Senat or Coghill spoke in opposition to the fam |y planning
| anguage. He elaborated that the |anguage had been a
mandate to go beyond what was already done by the state.
The departnent had provided a list of existing prograns
that included 7,500 individuals who had received famly
pl anni ng services to date. Services were currently provided
for contraception, sexually transmtted diseases, and
general reproductive health. He reiterated that the famly
pl anning |anguage had been a mandate to go beyond the
current services for itens like sterilization and
preconception care that he thought was already done under
pelvic exanms. He concluded that the [|anguage had been
broader than he want ed.

Representative Ledoux offered that the famly planning
conponent could be considered in the operating budget. She
did not believe the | anguage was appropriate for the bill.

Representative Gara asked for verification that the
Medi caid wonen's health program |anguage that had passed
the Senate was 90 percent covered by federal funds. Senator
Coghill replied that part of the program was 90 percent
covered and part was covered at 50 percent.

Aroll call vote was taken on the notion to adopt the CS

I N FAVOR. Munoz, W son, Edgnon, Neuman, Thonpson,
Costell o, Stoltze, Austernman

OPPCSED: Hol nes, Gara, QGuttenburg

The MOTI ON PASSED ( 3/ 8).

8:24: 44 AM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 7 02/ 25/ 14 8:01 A M



Representative Gara discussed that the Al aska Supreme Court
opinion from 2001 had included the condition of bipolar
di sorder under the definition of nedically necessary. He
believed the bill should include the disorder given that
medi cation for bipolar disorder was very dangerous to a
pregnancy. He asked for verification that the disorder had
been in the 2001 court opinion |anguage and why it had not
been included in the bill.

Senator Coghill answered that thorough nedical testinony
had convi nced the sponsor that the particular condition and
nost psychological conditions were not a threat to the
health of a pregnant wonman. Additionally, he referred to
the Hyde Amendnment where physical health was given as the
reason for the need of an abortion.

Representative Mnoz asked how many nedically necessary
abortions had occurred in Alaska in 2013. Senator Coghill
answered that the figure was over 1,700. He stated that
currently all abortions paid under Medicaid were deened
medi cal ly necessary due to the broad definition; the bil
clarified the definition. He corrected that 1,450 nedically
necessary abortions had occurred in 2013 and 1,700 had
occurred the year the |l egislation had been introduced.

8:27:02 AM

Senat or  Coghi | | corrected that the total nunber  of
abortions in 2013 was 1,450; Medicaid had paid for 547 of
the total.

Representative GQuttenberg pointed to the qualification |ist
of nedically necessary conditions and observed that one of
the itenms was "any other physical disorder.” He asked if
the |anguage sufficiently covered the other conditions
listed under the bill section.

Senator Coghill replied that the itenms l|isted out were
based on Al aska Suprenme Court testinony.

Representati ve GQuttenberg asked i f t he list was
restrictive.

Co-Chair Stoltze comented that he had never known Senat or
Coghill to pronote or increase the nunber of abortions.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 8 02/ 25/ 14 8:01 A M



Representative GQuttenberg wanted to nmake sure sonething

uni ntentional was not done. Senator Coghill answered that
the list had been verified by doctors and the Al aska
Suprene Court. He wunderstood that the |Ilist could not

i nclude everything, which was the reason it included the
| anguage "any ot her physical disorder."”

Representative CQuttenberg observed that all conditions in
the bill were physical. He discussed that increased
i nformati on about nental disorders was becom ng avail abl e.
He believed nental disorders were not included under the
bill's definition of medically necessary.

Senator Coghill replied that when his office had gone
through the court test of neutral criteria, the neutral
criteria showed that psychologically termnating or
carrying a pregnancy to term could have equal weight. He
did not feel from the doctors' testinony that a pregnancy
woul d go beyond the physical well-being of a nother.

8:30: 39 AM

Representative WIson wondered how the bill conpared to
state insurance. She wondered if there were two classes of
people being created by inplenmenting the law related to
Medi caid but not for other state enployees. She wanted to
provi de accurate information to her constituents.

Senator Coghill answered that Medicaid was a nmandated
formula program for individuals neeting qualifications. He
explained that the state had a negotiated healthcare plan
that fell under a very different set of rules. He deferred
to the adm nistration for further detail.

Representative Wl son wanted to hear from the Departnent of
Adm ni stration (DOA) about state health insurance.

Co-Chair Stoltze noted that both the DHSS and DOA woul d
testify.

8:33: 20 AM
AT EASE

8:34: 00 AM
RECONVENED

House Fi nance Conmmittee 9 02/ 25/ 14 8:01 A M



SUSAN SCHRADER, SELF, JUNEAU, spoke in opposition to HB 173
and SB 49 as anended. She stated that the bills represented
another attenpt by politicians to intervene in personal
nmedi cal decisions made by Alaskan wonen; decisions that
should be left up to wonmen to make in consultation wth
their famly, faith, and physicians. She spoke to the
conplexity a woman faced when deciding whether to have a
child, put the <child up for adoption, or to have an
abortion. She believed the bills were an effort to limt
access to abortion under the guise of clarifying the term
"medically necessary.” She stated that bills defining
per sonhood, requiring invasive ultrasound, or requiring
extended waiting periods, were all chipping away at wonen's
rights. She stressed that Ilimting access to Medicaid
funded abortions was not likely to limt the nunber of
abortions; however, it would limt the nunber of safe,
| egal abortions. She furthered that it my |ead wonen to
seek out illegal procedures. She pointed to practices
occurring prior to Roe v. Wade. She asked legislators to
adopt the wonen's health program under state Medicaid for
ready-access to famly planning and birth control for al
Al askan wonen (if the goal was to make abortion safe,
legal, and rare, and to saving noney). She stressed that
the program would effectively reduce abortions and costs
however, the CS renoved the |anguage from the bill. She
enphasi zed that famly planning worked and did so wthout
tranpling on wonmen's rights to nake their own healthcare
decisions. She understood that abortion was a highly
enotional issue, but she felt that the nobst upsetting thing
was to see other wonen limting wonen's rights to
heal t hcar e.

8:37:20 AM

LAURA POWNERS, SELF, JUNEAU, testified in opposition to the
bills. She introduced her daughters. She conmmunicated that
a wonan's preghancy decision was conplex and personal and
should be made in consult with her doctor, not politicians.
She stressed that only healthcare providers could know what
was nedically necessary. She inplored the comrittee to vote
no on the legislation and to inplenent a Medicaid wonen's
heal t h program i nst ead.

| ZEBELLA POVERS, SELF, JUNEAU, spoke in opposition to the

bill. She stressed that wonen should be able to make their
own deci si ons.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 10 02/ 25/ 14 8:01 A M



KORBYN POWNERS, SELF, JUNEAU, testified against the bill
She stated that wonen should have the ability to nake their
own heal t hcare deci si ons.

Ms. Laura Powers encouraged the conmttee to take al
Al askan wonen into consideration. She stated that it was a
wonman's choice to have control of her body. She asked the
commttee to vote no.

8:39:29 AM

GEORGE BROWN, PEDI ATRICI AN, JUNEAU, testified against the
bills. He relayed that he had been a practicing
pediatrician in Al aska since 1965. He read froma letter to
the commttee (copy on file):

These bills have several flaws. Wile it addresses the
nost contentious issue of our Republic's political

history since the abolition of slavery, it |MPOSES
personal values which restrict access to |egal nedical

servi ces, DI SRESPECTS personal choice of wonen, which
means sexual discrimnation, and of nost inportance
DENIES the reality of mnd and body connection in
human health. Neuroscience continues to show how our
brain influences physical health and illness. Physica

illnesses such as cancer and trauma injuries |ike
donmestic violence, <child maltreatnent, concussions,
and traumatic brain injuries inpose continuing nenta

stress and nmake a huge influence on our brains. Social

and behavioral disorders also have huge influence on
our brains.

Uni nt ended pregnancies can produce intense stress on
brains. Not uncommonly, sone intended pregnancies that
conclude with healthy newborns result in post-partum
depression, now well recognized in nedical practice.
Persons who are trying to cope with such physical and
social stresses can cope with them Successful coping
can be enhanced wth famly, health, and social
supports, which opens possibilities to other and
future choi ces and heal i ng.

Laws whi ch deny personal choices about health care add
nore stress to individuals. Persons who have never
been pregnant or who can never becone pregnant cannot
really understand these particular stresses. Persons
who are or who have been pregnant are nore experienced

House Fi nance Committee 11 02/ 25/ 14 8:01 A M



for seeking and finding the nobst appropriate choices
to deal with these stresses.

There is a nore positive option for all of us in this
conplex social dilema. As we try hard to be tol erant
about others values, understand the deep conplexities
of individual and social behavior, and to listen with
the intent to hear all voices, we can cone together to
accept and increase practices which prevent as many as
possi ble future unintended pregnancies. This is in no
way sinple, but it has been done for decades and does
wor k when practiced. It also can redirect our energies
away from conflict toward cooperation. There is
certainly much nore we can all do to inprove nale
under st andi ng about violence and pregnancy prevention
and to increase their practice of respect and birth
control. | hope you will vote against these bills and
work toward preventive |egislation action.

8:44: 38 AM

Representative Costell o acknow edged Dr. Brown for his work
maki ng house calls and his good reputation. Dr. Brown
replied that enjoyed his work. He noted that children were
born with love, enpathy, and trust and that listening to
chil dren woul d hel p solve the probl ens under discussion.

Vi ce-Chair Neuman spoke from the perspective of a father
He wondered who spoke for the life of the unborn child and
fetus. He believed it had been inplied that a man had a
| esser opinion than a wonan. He was very concerned about
the lives of wunborn children. He wondered how the unborn
child could be protected. He spoke about the option of
giving a child up for adoption. He wondered how to speak
for unborn children.

Dr. Brown replied that the issue was not sinple. He
believed there was still governnent of the people, by the
people, and for the people, as long as people continue to
speak up and create dialogue between elected officials and
t hensel ves. He stated that nore males and nore fathers were
appreciating the pregnancy process, which was a positive
thing. He enphasized the inportance of prevention. He
di scussed the inportance of doing everything possible to
i ncrease youths understandi ng about unintended pregnancies
and providing increased funds to counseling, support, and
famly planning. He spoke about work to prevent child abuse

House Fi nance Committee 12 02/ 25/ 14 8:01 A M



through the Alaska Children's Trust; the organization
worked with Father's Comunity Café to discuss pregnancy
and associated responsibilities of becomng a father. He
stressed that the work was about changing the paradigm He
di scussed the inportance of working together, listening to
each ot her, and cooperation.

8:49: 00 AM

Vi ce-Chair Neunman believed the opinion of a nedical doctor
was inportant. He spoke about changing his own children's
di apers. He wondered how to neasure the |ife and voice of
an unborn chil d.

Co-Chair Stoltze relayed his intent to continue hearing
public testinony.

Representative Gara referred to a court opinion that
i ncluded bipolar disorder on a list of itens that should
qualify for Medicaid coverage for abortions. He discussed
that the drug used to treat bipolar disorder had been
dangerous to a pregnancy. He wondered about potential
dangers and if the information remained current.

Dr. Brown answered that there were a nunber of potentially
dangerous drugs. He noted that one of the real problens was
that people with bipolar disorder or those under stress
frequently wused many other drugs including alcohol. He
stated that working to help elimnate drug and al cohol use
was far better than trying to tell a wonman she should or
should not have an abortion. Utinmately out of respect for
the belief in individual liberty, he believed it was a
woman's right to make her own decision. He believed support
around the decision was needed. He stressed the inportance
of prevention.

Representative Gara had been told that a Medicaid famly
pl anni ng program could reduce the nunber of abortions by
over 500 per year. He wondered if Dr. Brown believed the
adoption of the program would reduce the nunber of
abortions in Al aska.

Dr. Brown believed the adoption of the Medicaid famly
pl anni ng program would reduce the nunber of abortions. He
strongly urged the commttee to inplenent the program that
provi ded services to youths who were far nore likely to

House Fi nance Conmmittee 13 02/ 25/ 14 8:01 A M



have uni ntended pregnancies. The program would not prevent
all abortions, but it was a very worthwhile investnent.

8:52: 58 AM

Representative Miunoz had been advised by the D vision of
Public Health Nursing that no one was denied service based
on ability to pay. She asked whether services would be
expanded to cover nore individuals if the famly planning
proposal was added to the bill.

Dr. Brown replied that many people eligible for Medicaid
and Medicare did not use the services because they were
ashanmed of being poor. Likew se, there were many people who
could utilize public health services, but did not due to
the same reason. He believed Denali KidCare was hel pful
because it gave |ower-incone individuals access to services
with the broader population wthout nmaking them feel
ostraci zed. He stated that if access was nmade friendly and
open to everyone, individuals would be nore likely to
partici pate. He acknow edged that it would cost nobney, but
the investnment would reduce costs associated with jails,
courts, and other in the long-term

Vi ce- Chair Neuman stated that the financial costs
associated with taking a healthy baby to full term were not
that high. He wondered how nuch it would cost to carry a
baby to term and to offer it for adoption conpared to the
cost of abortion.

Dr. Brown could not provide a financial figure. He stated
that in the short-term an abortion would cost |ess;
however, he believed it was a tragedy and should be
prevented if possible. He stressed the inportance of
investing in supports to provide assistance and counseling
to pregnant wonen. He stated that investing the supports
that would help a nother deal with nmental stress was as
medi cal ly inportant as anything physical. He noted that the
services were costly, but would save noney in the 1|ong-
term He believed if people kept fighting over the issue
the problem would not be solved and the state would
continue to pay for services related to drugs and ot her.

8:57: 05 AM

M CHAEL PAULEY, ALASKA FAMLY COUNCIL, JUNEAU, spoke in
strong support of SB 49. He regretted that the bill had

House Fi nance Committee 14 02/ 25/ 14 8:01 A M



been cast as a question about when a person was able to
have an abortion. He believed the bill was really about
Medicaid funding. He referred to a 2004 study by the Al an
Guttmacher Institute of 1,209 abortion patients at 11 |arge
providers. He stated that the study participants had been
asked about the primary reason for an abortion; 4 percent
had comunicated that a physical health problem was the
nost inportant reason for the abortion; 12 percent stated
that health was a factor. He spoke about applying the
nunbers to Alaska; in 2013 the Bureau of Vital Statistics
reported that 1,450 abortions had been performed in Al aska,
547 or 37.7 percent of which had been paid for by Medicaid.
He stated that the nunber had held consistent over time. He
noted that public funds paid for the abortions. He stated
that if the nunbers were consistent with the national study
related to the nunber of nedically required abortions,
Medicaid would pay for 58 to 175 abortions per year. The
council believed that doctors performng abortions in
Al aska were submitting clains for abortions that were not
medically necessary. He believed SB 49 articulated a

reliable, medically neutral definition of nmedi cal | y
necessary abortion, which nmade good policy and fiscal
sense. He opined that the bill had nothing to do with pro-

life versus pro-choice; it was about neeting the state's
obligations to pay for nedically necessary abortions, but
not el ective abortions.

9:01: 42 AM

Representative WIlson referred to prior testinony related
to the national study's percentage of nedically necessary
abortions. She asked if the state was paying for abortions
that were not nedically necessary because doctors were not
asking the right questions. She noted that her office had
been told that no one was asking the questions. She was
trying to determ ne whether the doctors were not currently
asking the questions or whether the definition was specific
enough.

M. Pauley believed that the current system afforded a
significant amount of discretion to the physician. He noted
that the physicians were getting conpensated wth public
dollars for performng abortions. He opined that the issue
was shrouded in ideology. He noted that Planned Parenthood
provided the mgjority of abortions in the state. He
bel i eved Pl anned Parenthood took the view that an abortion
was medically necessary if a patient did not want to be

House Fi nance Conmmittee 15 02/ 25/ 14 8:01 A M



pregnant. His opinion was based on testinmony and Planned
Parent hood litigation. He had been disturbed the prior year
when a Pl anned Parenthood representative had testified that
she did not have a definition for elective abortions. He
stressed that the U S. Suprenme Court decision on abortion
funding had repeatedly nmade the distinction between
el ective and nedically necessary. He believed SB 49 offered
t he needed precision and clarification of |anguage.

9:04: 58 AM

Representative GQuttenberg asked about dialog between a
woman and a doctor regarding the decision to have an
abortion. He believed M. Pauley was insinuating that
virtually no conversation occurred between the two people
about the decision to have an aborti on.

M. Pauley deferred the question to doctors preformng
abortions. He did not believe that nobst physicians
performng abortions in Alaska felt that counseling was
within their purview He stated that the physicians
believed that abortion was a constitutional right and as
long as the inforned consent |law was followed the doctor
woul d provide the procedure w thout question.

Representative CQuttenberg referred to a personal nedical
experience and stressed that he did not know any doctors
who did not counsel their patients.

Representative Gara communicated that the term nedically
necessary abortion had been defined in a prior |egal case
bet ween the state and other parties. He believed M. Paul ey
t hought there were doctors <calling elective abortions
medically necessary. He disagreed; however, if it were
true, he wondered why doctors would follow the | aw under SB
49 if they were not currently follow ng the |aw.

M. Pauley believed the outcome would be different because

of the list of medical conditions included in the bill that
fell under t he nmedi cal | y necessary definition.
Additionally, the bill included a catchall provision for

conditions that it did not specifically list. He expected
the departnment to begin to ask tough questions if the bil
passed and 547 abortions perforned fell under the "other"
category in the future.

9:09: 02 AM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 16 02/ 25/ 14 8:01 A M



MELI SSA ENGEL, SELF, JUNEAU, testified in opposition to the
bills. She spoke from her perspective as a Christian. She
believed that God had created hunmans w th amazing bodies
and that humans were connected to their physical and nental
bodies in ways that no one else could ever be. She stressed
that each person knows what is best for them and when
unsure has the ability to consult wth trusted nedical
doctors. She urged the conmttee to oppose the bills. She
stressed that wonen knew what was best for their own
bodi es. When a woman was unsure, she consulted her nedica
doctor, not governnment officials; each woman was created
differently and had various reasons for deciding upon a
medi cal choice. She asked the commttee what would happen
if the reason did not fit wthin the bill's defined
paranmeters of nedically necessary. She enphasized that
wonen's health was not a political matter to be decided on
by | egislators. She thanked the commttee for its tine.

9:11: 44 AM

M KE COONS, SELF, PALMER (via teleconference), spoke in
favor of the legislation. He stated that all physicians had
a physician's desk reference and knew if nedication was a
threat to pregnancy. He referred to prior testinony rel ated
to drug and al cohol abuse and stated that substance abuse
caused many self-induced abortions. He did not believe the
issue was about elective abortions, but about what
constituted nedically necessary based on nedically sound
know edge. He stated that elective abortions were not to be
paid for with state noney under federal and state |aw.

9:13:10 AM

JOSHUA DECKER, EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR, AMERI CAN CI VIL LIBERTIES
UNION OF ALASKA (via teleconference), spoke against the
bills. He stated that the bills posed substantial
constitutional challenges. He pointed to a separation of
powers concern and explained that once the Al aska Suprene
Court had stated the contours of a constitutional right
such as the right for lowincone wonmen to have Medicaid
funded abortions, the legislature was not able to alter or
narrow the right (which both of the bills attenpted to do).
He communicated that the bills were substantively
unconstitutional. He spoke to earlier testinony related to
the om ssion of bipolar disorder fromthe bill's definition
of medically necessary, which in the Al aska Suprene Court's

House Fi nance Committee 17 02/ 25/ 14 8:01 A M



opinion was a constitutionally mandated reason to allow for
Medi caid funded abortions. Additionally, the bills were of
concern because they "cherry pick out" the term nedically
necessary in the abortion context and defined it in a
narrow and restrictive way; whereas the term was not
defined elsewhere in Medicaid docunents. The organization
believed that if the bills were enacted into law and
subject to constitutional challenge that the court would
"l ook askance" at the cherry picking definition.

M. Decker addressed the cost of the bills. He noted that
the bills' fiscal notes were zero, but abortion litigation
was not new to Alaska. He shared that the state had
repeatedly attenpted to unconstitutionally restrict a
wonman's right to reproductive choice and had spent nearly
$1 million defending the wunconstitutional attenpts. The
organi zation believed the state would likely have to pay
hundreds of thousands of dollars in attorney fees and costs
to the potential plaintiffs if the issue was subject to
| egal challenge. He urged the conmttee to not pass the
bills.

9:16: 27 AM

KINE MCCLI NTOCK, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference),
urged the conmittee to vote against the bills. She was a
life-long Al askan and was currently working on pursuing her
master's in public health. She had spent significant tine
studying the effects of policies that either restricted
access to abortion or nade contraceptives nore accessible.
She stated that the latter approach could decrease abortion
rates and provided wonen and famlies with the necessary
tools to lead healthy and fulfilling lives. She detailed
that research showed that restrictions such as the ones in
SB 49 were ineffective at decreasing the need for abortion.
She asked the legislature to nake contraceptives nore
accessible to lowincone wonen if the goal was to reduce
t he nunber of abortions. She stated that the definitions in
the bill denied |owincone wonen nedically necessary care,
which effectively created two classes of wonen. She
believed it was wunethical to mnmake a safe and | egal
procedure unavail able to some wonen. She strongly believed
that it was the state's obligation to care for all people
and to provide them with equal protection under the |aw
She was di sheartened that the |egislature was spending tine
on SB 49, which she believed was dangerous to wonen's
health. She stressed that deciding what constitutes a

House Fi nance Conmmittee 18 02/ 25/ 14 8:01 A M



nedi cally necessary abortion was a nedical decision and
should be left to physicians, not politicians. She asked
the commttee to oppose the |egislation.

Representative Gara thanked M. McClintock for her
testi nony.

9:19:16 AM

LYNN ESCOLA, SELF, PETERSBURG (via teleconference), spoke
in opposition to SB 49. She stated that the bil

established a "Chinese nenu" for determning who can
recei ve an abortion under Medicaid. She pointed out that no
mental and enotional illnesses regardless of severity were
included under the bill's definition. Also mssing were
cases of malfornmed fetus. She stressed that the om ssions
were incredibly inhumane and represented very poor public
policy. She stated that legislators were attenpting to dole
out healthcare according to their own judgnent of nedica

necessity. She believed the bill was not needed and that
deci ding what constituted nedically necessary could be |eft
to physicians. She believed the bill was pronpted to
wi thhold nedi cal care from sonme Alaskan wonen by
wi t hhol di ng paynent. She wanted the governnent to pay for
nmedi cal care for poor wonen, including abortions. She

referred to an Alaska Supreme Court ruling that the state
was required to provide equal protection under the law for
all pregnancy decisions. She stated if the state paid for a
wonman to remain pregnant it should pay for a woman to not
remain pregnant. She pointed out that remaining pregnant
cost the public nmuch nore than an abortion. She stated that
SB 49 represented excess governnent regulation, it hurt
i ndi vi dual Al askans who would be denied healthcare, and it
would result in the increased expenditure of public funds.
She opined that it was hard to see any legitimate public

interest being served by the bill. She added that if the
| aw passed it would likely be found unlawful. She stressed
that the bill was wasting the legislature's tine and the
public's noney. She was offended that the bill victimzed
poor wonen, especially young and rural poor wonmen wth
limted options. She stated that the bill would constrain

poor wonen to producing babies for the childless
m ddl ecl ass seeking to adopt. She was repul sed by the idea
of the governnent's hands conpelling a pregnancy as a
comodity. She stated that the bill would result in death
fromback alley or self-induced abortions or from suicide.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 19 02/ 25/ 14 8:01 A M



Co-Chair Stoltze asked for clarification about the term
Chi nese nmenu. Ms. Escola replied that it was a netaphor.

9:23: 03 AM

JESSI CA CLER, PUBLIC AFFAIRS MANAGER, PLANNED PARENTHOOD
VOTES NORTHWEST, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference), spoke
against the bills. She shared that the organization
operated five health centers in Alaska and in 2012 it
served nearly 12,000 people in the state with |ifesaving
and cost savi ng reproductive heal t hcare i ncl udi ng
contraception, cancer and disease screenings, exans, and
abortions. The agency was proud to be a provider of safe
and legal abortions, but its efforts were focused on
providing the resources people need to plan their
pregnanci es. The planning reduced unintended pregnancies,
abortions, and cost to the state for unintended pregnancy
care. She stressed that every worman and every woman's
health was different; only a trained health professional
shoul d deci de what was nedically necessary for a woman. She
added that the healthcare decision should not be made by
politicians.

Ms. Cler stated that the bills were a blatant attenpt to
put government into |owincone Al askan wonen's pregnancy
decisions, which was not right, not fair, and not good
heal thcare. She pointed to the unconstitutionality of the
legislation; in 2002 the Alaska Supreme Court specified
that the Medicaid program could not discrinmnate against
wonen who have an abortion. She noted that a judge had
already enjoined a DHSS rule that was alnost identical to
the bills. She stressed that there was no reason to waste
| egislative time, energy, and noney while the court was in
the process of deciding the issue. She stressed that the
bills would cost noney. She advised that iif reducing
abortions and saving noney was the l|egislature's goal, it
should get rid of the bills and enact a Mdicaid wonmen's
health program to get contraceptives to nore wonen whose
pregnanci es would otherwi se be paid for by the state. The
savings would be approximately $9 mllion annually. She
addressed the sponsor's stated reason for the |egislation
pertaining to state savings. She enphasized that the bills
woul d not save nobney and woul d cost nobney in continuing |aw
suits. She respectfully urged the commttee to not nove
forward with the bills.

9:26: 05 AM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 20 02/ 25/ 14 8:01 A M



THEDA PI TTMAN, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference), spoke
in opposition to the legislation. She believed everyone
agreed in the goal of reducing the nunber of abortions;

however, there was disagreenent in the way to acconplish
t he goal and about whether public funds should be used if a
pregnant girl or woman was on Medicaid. She stated that
public officials were vocalizing serious warnings about the
need to be nuch nore careful about spending state funds

She relayed that the bills had already wasted tinme and
noney. She continued that in spite of a current court case
chal I enging regulation |anguage, the sponsor of SB 49 had
pressed forward because statute held nore weight than
regul ation. She noted that the sponsor had identified the
issue as fiscally conservative. She opined that if the goa

was to behave in a fiscally conservative way, the bills
should be tabled wuntil the court decision was nmade. She
stated that the bills would be unnecessary if the court
upheld the regulations; if the regulations were struck down
as unconstitutional the decision would need to be anal yzed
to determne guidance the decision provided as to how
broadly the term nedically necessary abortion should be
construed. She stated that the bills would need to be
redrafted all over again. She asked the commttee to be
fiscally prudent and to wait until additional information
was avail abl e.

9: 28: 37 AM

ROBIN SUMVERS, POLICY DI RECTOR, NATIONAL FAM LY PLANN NG
AND  REPRODUCTI ON  ASSQOCI ATI ON, WASHI NGTON  D. C. (via
tel econference), briefly described the organization. She
t hanked Representative Holnmes for the invitation to testify
on Medicaid famly planning [the amendnent had been renoved
fromthe bills]. She read from prepared testinony (copy on
file):

For two decades states have broadened eligibility for
their Medicaid prograns to provide famly planning
services and supplies to individuals who are not
otherwise eligible for Medicaid. Today 30 states have
chosen to expand eligibility for famly planning;, 12
of those have done so through what's known as the
State Plan Anmendnent (SPA). Medicaid famly planning
SPAs provide a broad range of famly planning-rel ated
services, including the full range of contraceptive
nmet hods, pap tests, and other associated exam nations

House Fi nance Committee 21 02/ 25/ 14 8:01 A M



and | aboratory tests. A Medicaid famly planning SPA
does not cover abortion.

Ms. Summers addressed the idea that some of the services
were already provided through the Medicaid program She
communicated that a famly planning SPA would not be
duplicative of the <coverage Al aska currently provided
t hrough its Medicaid program

Today, a single nother with one child (working parent,
household of 2) is eligible for Medicaid if she earns
less than $2,111 per nonth. However, eligibility for
that sane single nother with one child, if she becones
pregnant, goes up to $4,124 per nonth during her
pregnancy. A childless adult is not eligible at all,
unl ess she has a qualifying condition (e.g. disabled).
A Medicaid famly planning SPA would provide famly
pl anning services to childless adults who are not
otherwi se eligible for Medicaid, as well as to those
single nothers wth incones that fall in the gap
bet ween $2,111 and pregnancy eligibility.

Ms. Sunmers detailed that Medicaid fam |y planning prograns
Ii ke the SPA under consideration saved states noney; nearly
$6.00 saved for every $1.00 spent. Expanding access to
contraception and increasing the use of nore effective
contraceptive nmethods are essential to reducing unintended
pregnancy. She read from a prepared statenent:

The Brookings Institution estimates that Medicaid
famly planning expansion progranms save taxpayers
$1. 32 billion annual | y. Births resul ting from
uni nt ended pregnancy cost US tax payers approximtely
$12.5 billion annually.

Ms. Summers relayed that in Alaska in 2010 there were 3,000
publicly f unded births resul ting from uni nt ended
pregnancies representing nore than one-quarter of all
births in the state and nore than half of the state's
Medicaid funded Dbirths. The births from unintended
pregnanci es cost a total of $71 mllion; $34 mllion of the
total had been paid for by the state. She stated that a
Medicaid famly planning SPA would inprove public health
while saving taxpayer dollars. She strongly wurged the
commttee to adopt the fam |y planni ng program

9:31: 52 AM

House Fi nance Committee 22 02/ 25/ 14 8:01 A M



JAN CAROLYN HARDY, SELF, ANCHORACE (via teleconference),
urged the conmttee to vote against the bills. She stated
that nedically necessary was not in the purview of
government and the |egal process. She stressed that the
decisions were for wonen and their doctors. The Al aska
Suprene Court ruled that the decision a wonan nmnakes
concerning her own body and whether to carry or term nate a
pregnancy is to be given equal protection under the |aw
The passage of the bills would result in increased spendi ng

on litigation related to the wunconstitutionality of the
i ssue. She st at ed t hat Al aska was wor ki ng Wi th
unpr ecedent ed deficits resul ting from corporation

mentality. She asked if Alaskans needed to bear another
unnecessary financial burden in order to forward partisan
positions that did nothing to inprove the quality of life
for all citizens. She questioned if nore noney needed to be
wasted on court costs when many of the state's citizens
| acked basic famly planning services.

Ms. Hardy spoke to the byproducts of wunintended pregnancy
i ncludi ng honel essness, hunger, poverty, and malnutrition
She stated that 50 percent of unintended pregnancies
occurred in the population served by Medicaid. She
communi cated that the only safe and economc strategy to
prevent unintended pregnancy was to institute a Medicaid
wonen's health program The program of fered suppl enments and
heal t hcare for wonen choosing to carry a baby to full-term
it offered contraceptive services for wonen choosing not to
have children. She urged the committee to vote against the
bills and asked it to inplement a Medicaid wonen's health
program She relayed that 90 percent of the program s cost
was covered by the federal governnment, wth 10 percent

covered by the state. In addition to keeping federal
dollars in Al aska, the program would defray a significant
burden to the Denali KidCare service, which would save
mllions of dollars. She thanked the conmittee for its
tinme.

9:34: 45 AM

JOYANNE BLOOM SELF, JUNEAU, testified against the bills.
She spoke to the financial inpacts of the |egislation. She

believed the zero fiscal notes attached to the bill were
m sl eadi ng. She pointed out that the DHSS conmm ssioner had
relayed that the bill would cost close to $1 mllion in

l[itigation. She had also heard from the sponsor that he

House Fi nance Conmmittee 23 02/ 25/ 14 8:01 A M



expected the issue would go to litigation. She believed
there were many better ways to spend $1 mllion.

9:36:10 AM

ANN ROBERTSQN, SELF, JUNEAU, spoke strongly against the
| egislation. She stated that the definition of nedically
necessary abortions should be determ ned only be doctors;
the decision was not the purview of the |legislature. She
believed the bills constituted broad governnment overreach,
whi ch she understood many conmittee nenbers were opposed
t o. She urged the conmittee to vote against t he
| egi sl ati on.

9:37: 05 AM

AMY BOLLENBACH, SELF, HOVER (via teleconference), spoke
against SB 49. She pointed out that the bills would cost
the state a significant amount of noney. She noted that it
cost less to pay for an abortion than it did to pay the
heal thcare of children born to wonen who were not ready to
be parents. She nentioned her work as a wuniversity

psychol ogy teacher. She pointed to the connection between
mental and physical health and discussed that if sonmeone
was nentally ill it inpacted physical health and vice

versa. She stated that it was inpossible to list all of the
di fferent nedical reasons a woman may need an abortion. She
asked the commttee to vote against SB 49 because it was
not hel pful to the health of wonen in Al aska.

9:39: 18 AM

JEAN BRAMER, OBSTETRICI AN, FAI RBANKS (via teleconference),
testified in favor of the legislation. She stated that
medi cal necessity was defined every day. She stated that
many strict definitions of the term existed and nuch
research and literature could explain it. She continued
that there were few instances when pregnancies would be
recommended for termnation based on health issues. She
stated that the nunber of abortions deemed nedically
necessary were not close to existing definitions of nedical
necessity. She stated that approximately 40 percent of

abortions were deenmed necessary conpared to literature
showing that approximately 4 percent fell under the
medically necessary category. She comuni cated that

research showed that there were very few pregnancies that
should be terminated due to the health of a nother. She

House Fi nance Committee 24 02/ 25/ 14 8:01 A M



stated that nobst of the abortions were term nated based on
the desire to not continue a pregnancy. She furthered that
SB 49 did not |imt resources for wonen to choose to
exercise their legal right of termnation. She did not
believe the state's tax dollars needed to fund elective
abortions. She did not believe the issue had to do wth
pro-life or pro-choice. She opined that it was a funding
issue and that the ternms were well defined in the bill. She
supported the legislation in order to continue healthcare
provided to Alaskans and to make the best use of tax
dollars by allow ng appropriate definitions to be nade. She
did not support a "carte blanche" to anyone choosing to
term nate a pregnancy.

Representative WIson asked whether doctors were follow ng
the current law related to nedical necessity. Dr. Braner
did not believe doctors could be followng the current |aw
She noted that the nunber of abortions deenmed nedically
necessary by doctors [in Alaska] was nuch higher than the
research figures. She had one or two instances when the
option could have been considered but the patients had
chosen to continue with their pregnancies. She did not
believe it was realistic that 40 percent of the patients
coul d be having abortions out of nedical necessity.

Representative Wl son asked Dr. Bramer if she believed that
the bill would be effective. Dr. Bramer replied in the
affirmati ve. She believed a statenent of nedical necessity
could be interpreted in various ways; however, there were
very few instances when el ective surgeries were paid for by

i nsurance. She believed the bill represented a continuation
of nedical practices in the "normal nedical world." She
pointed out that the bill provided a strict guideline for
what constituted nedically necessary. She stated that the
bill did not I|imt anyone's access to abortions. She
believed the bill was excellent.

9:44:15 AM

Representative Gara pointed to Dr. Braner's testinony that
doctors were currently providing elective abortions under
the nedically necessary category. He disagreed, but
wondered why doctors would start conplying with the law in
the future if they were not conplying with existing | aw

Dr. Braner replied that the bills would provide stricter
gui del ines. She believed a | oose guideline provided doctors

House Fi nance Conmmittee 25 02/ 25/ 14 8:01 A M



with the opportunity to deem elective abortions as
medi cally necessary. She stated that wth a strict
definition doctors would either be commtting fraudul ent
activity by designating elective abortions as nedically
necessary or they would have to realize the abortions would
not get funded by Medicaid. She believed nmany physicians
were currently providing elective abortions under the
medi cal | y necessary category.

Representati ve Munoz wondered if Dr. Braner believed that a
di agnosed nental disability should be listed in the bill as
a nedically necessary reason for an abortion. Dr. Bramer
replied in the negative. She relayed that she had taken
care of many wonmen with nental di sorders through
pr egnanci es.

9:46: 30 AM

Co-Chair Stoltze wanted to hear from Al aska Mental Health
Trust Authority (AMHTA) related to the issues.

Representative Hol mes wondered if the health of a fetus was
considered in the legislation. She thought it was cruel and
unusual if a woman was forced to continue a pregnancy if
the fetus would not survive. Dr. Braner answered that the
di scovery of an unviable fetus was typically found in the
second trinmester. She explained that the issue typically
went through an ethics conmttee and an opinion was
received from two physicians at different practices. Once
agreenent had been nmade that the fetus was nonviable, the
patient would have the option to term nate the pregnancy.
She stated that the occurrence was fairly infrequent; she
recalled that she had three patients in the situation
during her 18 years of practice.

Representative Holnmes would take the issue up with the
sponsor.

Co-Chair Stoltze appreciated the testimony from the
physi ci ans.

ALLI SON CURREY, SELF, JUNEAU, spoke in opposition to the
bills. She agreed with many points nade by others opposing
the bills. She spoke in support of increased access to
famly planning services through a Medicaid wonen's health
program She addressed supporting testinony that the bills
were only about clarifying definitions, not restricting

House Fi nance Conmmittee 26 02/ 25/ 14 8:01 A M



access to abortion. She stressed that |egal abortion neant
very little to a woman who could not pay for one. She
believed the bills were discrimnatory because they
violated the constitutional equal protection clause that
protects the freedom and privacy of |owincone wonen to
make their own healthcare decisions. She thanked the
conmittee for its tine.

Co-Chair Stoltze CLOSED public testinony.

9:51:17 AM

Senator Coghill replied that the crux of the issue in the
| egislation was related to Medicaid paynent. He stated that
Medicaid was an entitlenment provided to poor people in
Al aska. He believed that Medicaid should be avail able when
there was a need. He comunicated that the bill did not
restrict a wonan's choice [to have an abortion]. He
believed it brought responsibility to the <choice. He
acknow edged that the area was highly litigated. He noted
that Planned Parenthood had no answer when he had asked
what constituted an elective abortion. He believed Planned
Parent hood viewed any wanted abortion as required. He
stated that any other elective procedure would be provided

under Medicaid if It was for heal th reasons. He
acknow edged that he had a larger issue with the topic, but
he had worked to keep the bill narrowy focused. He stated

that a court decision had brought up psychol ogica
conditions. As the chairman of the House Judiciary
Comm ttee, he had brought ei ght or nine nedical
professionals (pro and con) to testify extensively on the
| egal technical and ethical issues. He had determ ned that
under neutral criteria (was healthcare avail abl e under both
circunstances) the answer had been that there was no
conpelling reason to include it [psychological conditions]
in the case of abortions. He remarked that the Al aska
Suprene Court had not had the testinony that the
| egi sl ature had heard. He agreed to speak with AVHTA on the
subject as well, but believed it had been well vetted.

Senator Coghill stated that Planned Parenthood and the ACLU
pushed for abortions in alnost any case. He was not
surprised that the entities had to both continually be
chal l enged on three l|legal and practical Ievels including
policy, how to deal with the issue in good standard nedi ca

terms, and how to answer technical I|egal argunents. He
shared that he frequently disagreed with the courts on

House Fi nance Committee 27 02/ 25/ 14 8:01 A M



policy and philosophy. He believed in the rule of |aw and
detailed that the bill attenpted to bring clarity to the
issue. He agreed that litigation costs existed; however, he
found it difficult to believe that pronoting abortions over
taking care of children would be cheaper. He stated that
there was an expense no matter what. He comunicated that
he had worked hard to help children in need of aid,
i ndividuals with Fetal Al cohol Syndrone, and wonen in need;
service for people in need cost approximately $3.2 billion
in state and federal funds. He believed the wllingness of
Al askans to help people was difficult to challenge. He
stated that the equal protection argunment was about whet her
equitable care was provided; he believed the answer was
yes. He acknow edged that the issue was enotional and that
the well-being and rights of a nother were to be respected.
He discussed that the issue of paynent was difficult; the
bill ainmed to bring clarity.

9:57:31 AM

Representati ve Ledoux appreciated the conmttee's tinme. She
pointed to heartfelt testinony, but noted that nost of the
opposing testinony related to a wonman's right to choose an
abortion. She stated that the bill was unrelated to that
right. She stressed that the bill only pertained to who
pai d for abortions.

Senator Coghill added that he had asked DHSS to clarify
what was currently covered under fam |y planning services
in Alaska. There were currently 39 itenms covered under
famly planning. He relayed that under diagnostic genera
reproductive health there were eight itenms including
cervi cal cancer, femal e reproductive cancer, mal e
reproductive, pap snear tests, urinary, and vagi na
di scharge; there were 11 other itenms under diagnostic
sexually transmtted infections. The contraception category
included birth control pills, cervical caps, diaphragns,
etc. He stated that there were 16 different variations of
famly planning currently used in the state. Oher cancer
screening and prevention covered under Medicaid included
mammogr ans, pap snears, and col onoscopies. He detailed that
nmost of the itens were covered at the 90 percent area and
many were covered at the 50 percent area. Preconception
gynecol ogic exans were also covered. He Dbelieved the
requi renment under current law was significant. He stated
that Denali KidCare provided services in 18 different
ar eas.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 28 02/ 25/ 14 8:01 A M



Co-Chair Stoltze relayed that DHSS and DOA woul d address
the commttee related to the bills. He noted that the issue
woul d be discussed further at the afternoon neeting.

HB 173 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for further
consi derati on.

SSSB 49(FIN) was HEARD and HELD in conmmttee for further
consi derati on.

#
ADJ OURNVENT

10: 00: 59 AM

The neeting was adjourned at 10:00 a. m

House Fi nance Conmmittee 29 02/ 25/ 14 8:01 A M



